
 
 

 

 

 

 

FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting Agenda  

Tuesday, August 27, 2013 

Freeport City Hall 

7:00 P.M. 

7:00 P.M. I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

 

1 minute III. CONSENT AGENDA – (One motion, option to remove any item for further discussion) 

A. Approval of the agenda 

B. Approval of the minutes from the July 30, 2013 Regular Meeting 

C. Approval of the claims distributed July 31, 2013 through August 12, 2013 

D. Other 

 

  IV. PUBLIC HEARING (VARIANCE REQUESTED AT 300 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE) 

 

10 minutes V.  OLD BUSINESS 

A. Fire Hall Door Replacement 

B. Other 

  

60 minutes VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Gerald Meyer Variance Request 

B. Famo Feed Tax Abatement Default 

C. Wellhead Protection Plan 

D. Michael Brethorst, Board Member MN Association of Small Cities (MAOSC) 

E. 2014 Proposed Budget and Tax Levy (Resolution 2013-020) 

F. Fire Department, Chief Position 

G. Old Water Tower 

H. LBAE Training 

I. Other 

 

20 minutes VII. REPORTS 

A. City Engineer – Scott Lange & Dave Blommel, S.E.H. 

B. Public Works Director– Jon Stueve 

C. Clerk-Treasurer – Mason Schirmer 

D. Other 

 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

Next Meeting:  September 24, 2013 at 7:00 PM 



Page 1 of 4 

 

FREEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

July 30, 2013 

 

A regular meeting of the Freeport City Council was convened at 7:00 P.M. by Council Member 

Carrie Goebel (Presiding Officer) with Council Members Ron Ritter, Ken Goebel and Rodney 

Atkinson present. Mayor Matt Worms was not in attendance. 

 

Also in attendance: Carol Moorman, Keith Fischer (109 3
rd

 Street SW), Al Williams (308 2
nd

 

Ave NW), Cecil & Lucile Harms (208 2
nd

 Ave NW), Arnie Hoeschen (309 2
nd

 Ave NW), Dave 

Nieman (Minnesota Rural Water Association) and LeRoy Hoeschen (116 3
rd

 St NW). 

 

Staff in attendance: Mason Schirmer, Jon Stueve and Dave Blommel.   

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was said by those in attendance. 

 

OPEN PUBLIC FORUM 

No public comment was provided. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Schirmer suggested the following corrections and additions to the agenda: 1) Move Adjournment 

to item ten (X); 2) Add item nine (IX) Closed Session; and 3) Rename item seven (VII) A: 

Harms Variance Request. K. Goebel moved and Ritter seconded a motion to approve the 

additions and corrections. Motion carried 4-0. Atkinson asked for item C (claims) be removed 

from the consent agenda and discussed during the Clerk’s Report. K. Goebel moved and Ritter 

seconded a motion to approve the consent agenda item A (agenda) and item B (minutes from the 

June 25, 2013 regular meeting). Motion carried 4-0. 

 

PUBLIC INFORMATIONAL MEETING (Public review of wellhead protection plan) 

Dave Nieman, of Minnesota Rural Water Association, presented an overview of the steps the city 

has taken thus far as well as the next steps in the process. Nieman said a scoping meeting will be 

taking place tomorrow, during which time the city will receive further details on the next step in 

the process. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING (Variance requested at 208 2
nd

 Ave NW) 

K. Goebel moved and Ritter seconded a motion to open the public hearing. Motion carried 4-0. 

Public hearing opened at 7:25 PM. 

 

Schirmer presented a variance request from Cecil Harms for potential dwelling and garage 

additions at 208 2
nd

 Ave NW. Al Williams asked what the variance request is for. Schirmer said 

the variance being requested is to allow the property owner to infringe the side yard setback and 

the front yard setback for the construction of a new dwelling and garage addition. Williams said 

fifty foot (50’) lots are difficult to work with and that the city needs to work with property 

owners. Schirmer said the lot at 208 2
nd

 Ave NW does not have access to an alley. Schirmer 

presented a memo from Municipal Development Group stating they do not support the request. 

Williams asked if the garage could be constructed on the rear of the property. Schirmer said the 



Page 2 of 4 

 

property does not have access to an alley. K. Goebel and C. Goebel both said they were not 

comfortable permitting construction up-to three (3) feet from the property line. Cecil Harms said 

his property line is twelve feet (12’) from the edge of the city street. Atkinson commented that 

the lines on the certificate of survey indicate property lines, not street. Atkinson said the distance 

from the property line to the street provides the city options, such as installing sidewalks. 

Schirmer said the distance also provides space for street reconstruction. Williams asked what the 

setback distances are. Schirmer said the property is within the R-1 Residential Zone with a thirty 

foot (30’) front setback and a six foot (6’) side yard setback. Harms said the new garage 

additional would be used to store two (2) vehicles and provide extra shop and storage space.  

 

Ritter moved and K. Goebel seconded a motion to close the public hearing. Motion carried 4-0. 

Public hearing closed at 7:35 PM. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

2012 Hail Storm Insurance Claim Status 

Schirmer provided a memo detailing what has been happening with the process. Schirmer said he 

identified more hail damage than was originally recorded by the insurance adjuster. Schirmer 

said he worked closely with Carol Kelly with the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust 

(LMCIT). Schirmer said the city has been notified that insurance will cover the cost of replacing 

all of the fire halls overhead doors for $16,993.00 (provided by St. Cloud Overhead Door). 

Schirmer said the LMCIT has also authorized replacing the panels on the roof, west wall and 

south wall of the Maintenance Building for $20,511.19. 

 

Other 

In referring to the minutes of the previous city council meeting (June 25, 2013) regarding New 

Business: EDA Appointments, Atkinson asked if the term ‘ex-officio’ had been defined. 

Schirmer said the term refers to holding one position by way of another position. Schirmer said 

he had received information from the League of Minnesota Cities as well as from Atkinson 

regarding the terms definition. 

 

K. Goebel asked for EDA meeting minutes to be included within the city council meeting 

packets. Schirmer said he will include the minutes with future packet materials. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Harms Variance Request 

Atkinson said fifty foot (50’) lots are difficult to accommodate and that the city should possibly 

consider special zoning for small lots. K. Goebel said he is not comfortable with permitting 

development so close to the front property line. Al Williams said the city needs to accommodate 

property owners. 

 

Atkinson moved and Ritter seconded a motion to deny the variance request for 208 2
nd

 Ave NW. 

Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Paynesville Mutual Aid Agreement Request 

Schirmer said the city received a mutual aid agreement request from the City of Paynesville. 

Schirmer said Freeport Fire Chief Noah VanBeck recommends not approving the agreement due 



Page 3 of 4 

 

to distance; and that Freeport has sufficient agreements with neighboring departments and if the 

need for additional support arises, he would contact the County and State for help. 

 

Schirmer said that in addition, the document contains a section stating that the City of 

Paynesville would not be responsible for damage caused to Freeport equipment. Schirmer said 

that due to the high cost of emergency response equipment, this section may not be in the best 

interest of the City of Freeport. Schirmer said he had left two voice messages and one email for 

Renee Eckerly (City Administrator, City of Paynesville) for more information on the origin of 

the document and the section in question. Schirmer said no response was received. 

 

City council agreed not to approve and sign the agreement. 

 

City Newsletter 

Schirmer presented an old version of the city newsletter (Winter 2012) and asked if the city 

council wants the city to mail residents newsletters again. Council said the newsletter was 

discontinued after the city incorporated bill cards into utility billing; previously, the newsletter 

also contained utility bills.  

 

Initiative Foundation 2014 Contribution Request 

Schirmer presented a request form the Initiative Foundation of $500 for their 2014 budget. 

Council asked for the request to go before the EDA first. 

 

Legislator Recognition (Paul Anderson) 

Schirmer presented a memo from the League of Minnesota Cities acknowledging the efforts of 

State Representative Paul Anderson, 

 

Stearns County Public Hearing Notice 

Schirmer presented a notice of public hearing regarding a proposed text change in Stearns 

County Land Use and Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Financial Report & 2014 Budget 

Schirmer presented revenue and expenditure summaries. Schirmer said he is working with Joe 

Rigdon (KDV) to separate Fund 305 into individual bond funds, which will provide a clearer 

picture of each bonds cash account balance. Schirmer said General Fund revenues are on pace 

and Expenditures are less than anticipated at this time of year. Schirmer said he has started 

budgeting for 2014 and welcomes suggestions for items to be budgeted for. Schirmer said he 

intends to present a preliminary budget rough draft during the August 27, 2013 regular city 

council meeting. 

 

REPORTS 

City Engineer, S.E.H. – Dave Blommel 

Blommel said that after recently inspecting the wasterwater pond wall, he was able to determine 

that the top of the wall had not settled (which was the initial diagnosis); rather, the rip-rap had 

settled. Blommel estimated wall repairs as initially diagnosed would have exceeded $80,000; 

however, the addition of rip-rap should not exceed $5,000. 

 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Blommel said the water tower project is nearing completion and is hereby asking final payments 

be made and project documents be signed. K. Goebel moved and Ritter seconded a motion to: 1) 

authorize final payment of $10,000 contingent upon Rural Development’s concurrence and staff 

acceptance of punch list items; and 2) authorize mayor and staff to sign documents finalizing the 

construction contract with General Construction Services. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Public Works Director, Jon Stueve 

Stueve said he was getting estimates to repair select portions of street throughout town 

 

 

Clerk-Treasurer, Mason Schirmer 

Schirmer presented a memo detailing activities throughout the month. In addition, Schirmer said: 

1) a new business is opening on Saturday, August 3
rd

, next to Uptown Hair; 2) local business 

Wobegon Fabic & Quilting Supplies recently closed; 3) the city will being addressing properties 

in violation of the nuisance ordinance; and 4) the city’s first quarter 941 filed with the IRS was 

not initially received correctly by the IRS and as a result the city received a notice of an 

outstanding balance in excess of $20,000; however, Schirmer said he worked with the IRS and 

the problem has since been resolved and no balance remains. 

 

Schirmer answer questions regarding claims paid. Ritter moved and K. Goebel seconded a 

motion to approve claims distributed June 19, 2013 through July 22, 2013. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Closed Session 

K. Goebel moved and Ritter seconded a motion to close the regular meeting on advice of counsel 

in association with Keith Fischer assessment appeal. Motion carried 4-0. Meeting closed at 9:10 

PM. 

 

K. Goebel moved and C. Goebel seconded a motion to reopen the regular meeting. Motion 

carried 4-0. Meeting reopened at 9:34 PM. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

K. Goebel moved and C. Goebel seconded a motion to adjourn the regular meeting. Motion 

carried 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:35 PM. 

 

 

 

___________________________   ___________________________ 

Mason Schirmer, City Clerk      Matthew H. Worms, Mayor 











City of Freeport 
Notice of Public Hearing 

 
The Freeport City Council will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, August 27, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. or 
as soon thereafter, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 125 Main Street East, in Freeport 
Minnesota to consider the following matter that requires a public hearing. 
 
Applicant: Gerald Meyer (DBA Mid Central Heating and Air Conditioning) 
 
Purpose: To review and consider an application for a variance from Section 500.45, Subd. 5 of 
the Freeport City Code regarding erecting a fence with a height greater than city code permits. 
The property is located at 300 Industrial Drive in the I-1 Industrial District. 
 
Legal: Lot 1 Block 1 of Freeport Industrial Park Plat 3. 

 
Parcel # 54.32129.0061 
 
To comment on this matter contact the the City of Freeport at 125 Main Street East, PO Box 301, 
Freeport, MN 56331, (320) 836-2112. 
  
Published once in the Melrose Beacon August 14, 2013. 

 



Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 13, 2013 

Re:  Fire Hall Doors 

 

During the July Regular City Council meeting, I presented an update on the insurance claim resulting 

from the 2012 hail storm. During the update, I provided proposals from two door companies (St. Cloud 

Overhead Door and Heartland Door Sales) to replace all overhead doors. 

 

The League of MN Cities Insurance Trust has authorized the replacement of all overhead doors at a price 

not to exceed $16,993 (the proposal submitted by St. Cloud Overhead Door). 

 

At that time, I did not ask Council for a formal action. Instead, I provided Council an opportunity to 

comment or object; and, if there was no objection, the company that provided the lowest cost proposal 

would be awarded the project. 

 

Following the meeting, before any vendors were contacted, two items of discussion came to my attention: 

1. The R-Factor (insulation rating) on each proposal were not the same; and 

2. If an additional window was added to each overhead door, the company with the lowest cost 

proposal changes. 

 

I began surveying Council members for their opinions and immediately received mixed feedback. Since 

Council member opinions were not unanimous, I stopped surveying and decided to return to Council for 

direction. 

 

Consider: 

1. The lowest cost proposal is $135 less than the other proposal ($16,993 vs $17,128) with an R-

Factor 1.32 less than the other proposal. 

2. The additional cost of adding an additional window to each door is $400 (Heartland Door Sales) 

 

The City Council should approve a motion to accept one of the proposals. 



Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 13, 2013 

Re:  Famo Feeds Tax Abatement Default 

 

On July 27, 2010 Famo Feeds, Inc entered into an agreement with the City of Freeport (attached along 

with this memo) for Tax Abatement. As per the agreement, on August 1, 2013 the City was to send Famo 

their first $2,000 payment (1
st
 of 20 total payments). 

 

Before sending any payments, I reviewed the contract and found that Section 5.1 was not satisfied by the 

company. According to the company’s 2013 Property Tax Statement, New Improvements were $308,700 

($27,300 less than agreed upon). 

 

The company’s default was confirmed by Adam Ripple (Rinke Noonan). As per Section 8.2, I provided 

Tom Beste with written notice of the default. Jon Beste discussed the matter with me over the phone and 

said he understands the need to prorate abatement. 

 

According to Stearns County Senior Appraiser Steve Chmielewski, the reduced value resulted in a 

decreased tax liability of $1,221. 

 

It is my recommendation, that as per Section 8.2 (c), the City amend the Agreement to reduce tax 

abatement to $27,790 payable in twenty (20) equal semi-annual payments of $1,389. 

 

 $4,000 Original Tax Abatement 

            -$1,221 Company’s estimated reduced tax liability by not meeting agreed-upon market valuation 

 $2,779 Adjusted Tax Abatement 

 

          $1,389 Adjusted semi-annual payment 











Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 13, 2013 

Re:  Wellhead Protection 

 

On July 30, 2013, I met with Karen Voz (MDH) and Dave Neiman (MN Rural Water) for the 2
nd

 Scoping 

Meeting (see included WHP Public Information Meeting Agenda). During the meeting Voz and Neiman 

presented a history on the Wellhead Protection Plan and the content that will be within Phase 2. 

 

Along with this memo is the Scoping 2 Decision Notice which provides a summary of the 

sections/content that will need to be addressed in the Wellhead Protection Plan. 

 

It is my recommendation that the City of Freeport: 

1. Appoint Co-Wellhead Protection Managers 

Jon Stueve and Mason Schirmer 

 

2. Appoint a Wellhead Protection Committee 

Jon Stueve, Public Works Director 

Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

Matt Worms, Mayor 

Rodney Atkinson, Councilmember 

Jon Wilwerding, Community Volunteer 

Pete Welle, Community Volunteer 

Dennis Heidgerken, Community Volunteer 

 

3. Hire a Consultant 

Approve and authorize a Request for Proposals (see attached template) 

 

 

Additional Information 

I recently met with John Harren, PWD for the City of Melrose to discuss potentially using Melrose’s 

Wellhead Protection Plan to help develop Freeport’s. However, they are currently in the process of 

redeveloping their document. I have also asked other communities in Minnesota for copies of their plan. 

At this time I am reviewing a similar plan in an attempt to try to do the work in-house; however, my 

recommendation is to consider hiring a consultant. 



































Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 15, 2013 

Re:  2014 Proposed Budget and Tax Levy 

 

Along with this memo is the following: 

 2014 Proposed Budgeted Expenditures 

 2014 Proposed Budgeted Revenues 

 Draft Resolution 2013-020 

 League of MN Cities Memo regarding proposed tax levy 

 

Notes regarding Levy: 

 Total tax levy remains unchanged from 2012. 

 

Notes regarding Expenditure Budget: 

 General Fund expenditures to increase .42%  

 No Sales Tax is budgeted; as of 1/1/14 all purchases and sales are exempt 

 

Notes regarding Revenue Budget: 

 Transfers from Water Fund and Sewer Fund into General Fund to increase to $40,000 each. 

 

 

Furthermore: 1) the EDA budget will be reviewed by EDA on August 26
th
; 2) the Fire Department budget 

will be reviewed by the Chief on or before August 27
th
; and 3) Fund 305 (Consolidated Debt) was divided 

into Funds 310, 315, 320, 325, 330, 331. 

 

I recommend reviewing all the documents and coming prepared to openly discuss your concerns with the 

proposed 2014 Budget and Tax Levy. 



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 1 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 101 General Fund

 41000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT
   200 Postage                                     216        250        255        600  43%        600 __________        600   100%
   210 Operating Supplies                        2,794      2,848      1,420      4,000  36%      3,500 __________      3,500    88%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                    969         82      1,356        750 181%        750 __________        750   100%
   300 Professional Services                     1,973      3,098      5,740      3,000 191%      3,000 __________      3,000   100%
   303 Engineering                                            332                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   311 Outside Maintenance                         848                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   320 Telephone                                 3,472      3,567      1,426      4,000  36%      3,750 __________      3,750    94%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                                     49                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   350 Notices & Publication                       693        780      2,588      1,250 207%        850 __________        850    68%
   351 Periodicals                                            293         39        100  39%        100 __________        100   100%
   361 Liability Insurance                                             6,343          0 ***%     10,450 __________     10,450 *****%
   381 Electric                                  2,528      1,958      1,733      2,000  87%      2,500 __________      2,500   125%
   410 Rentals                                   1,539      1,737      1,328      1,750  76%      1,800 __________      1,800   103%
   430 Miscellaneous                                48      1,191        217        500  43%        500 __________        500   100%
   433 Dues                                      1,384      2,438        539        250 216%        750 __________        750   300%
   434 League Dues                                            706                   550   0%        750 __________        750   136%
   450 Sales Tax                                    13         34         14        100  14% __________ __________          0     0%
   510 Capital Expenditures                                 4,050        794      1,500  53% __________ __________          0     0%
   560 Furniture and Fixtures                    2,543                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   570 Office Equip & Furnishing                            1,729                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   620 Fiscal Agents Fees                           10                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                19,030     25,142     23,792     20,350 117%     29,300          0     29,300   144%

 41100 Legislative (Council/Board)
   100 Wages and Salaries                        3,104      4,825      2,225      3,900  57%      3,640 __________      3,640    93%
   121 Cities FICA 6.2%                            278        299        138        250  55%        225 __________        225    90%
   122 Cities Share MED 1.45%                       73         70         32         75  43%         54 __________         54    72%
   330 Training                                                          299        250 120%        240 __________        240    96%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                         234                              100   0%        100 __________        100   100%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                       40         74        121        100 121%         50 __________         50    50%
                        Account:                 3,729      5,268      2,815      4,675  60%      4,309          0      4,309    92%

 41300 Executive (Mayor/Manager)
   100 Wages and Salaries                        1,108      1,000        670      1,425  47%      1,330 __________      1,330    93%
   121 Cities FICA 6.2%                             95         62         42        100  42%         82 __________         82    82%
   122 Cities Share MED 1.45%                       25         15         10         25  40%         20 __________         20    80%
   330 Training                                    120        367        120        500  24%        250 __________        250    50%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                         218                   200        100 200%        100 __________        100   100%
   433 Dues                                         20         30                    25   0%         25 __________         25   100%
                        Account:                 1,586      1,474      1,042      2,175  48%      1,807          0      1,807    83%

 41400 Clerk
   100 Wages and Salaries                       55,140     59,543     22,045     58,500  38%     56,160 __________     56,160    96%
   103 Part time wages                          12,383     19,546     16,748     26,500  63%     20,800 __________     20,800    78%
   120 Cities Share PERA                         4,778      5,977      2,548      6,200  41%      4,825 __________      4,825    78%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 2 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
   121 Cities FICA 6.2%                          4,913      6,190      2,392      5,275  45%      4,780 __________      4,780    91%
   122 Cities Share MED 1.45%                    1,074      1,824        559      1,250  45%      1,120 __________      1,120    90%
   130 Health Insurance                         13,307     16,284      5,032     16,750  30%     14,500 __________     14,500    87%
   131 Life Insurance                               24         24          8         24  33%         24 __________         24   100%
   320 Telephone                                   260        130                     0   0%        120 __________        120 *****%
   330 Training                                    835        614        670      1,000  67%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                       1,105        586        903      1,000  90%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   350 Notices & Publication                                   75                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                      524        488        660        600 110%        500 __________        500    83%
   431 Permits/License                              80                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   433 Dues                                        190        180                   200   0%        200 __________        200   100%
                        Account:                94,613    111,461     51,565    117,299  44%    105,029          0    105,029    90%

 41450 Elections
   105 Misc Compensation                                    2,196                     0   0%      2,250 __________      2,250 *****%
   210 Operating Supplies                           25         86        388         40 970%        100 __________        100   250%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                                    521                     0   0%        550 __________        550 *****%
   350 Notices & Publication                                  141                     0   0%        150 __________        150 *****%
                        Account:                    25      2,944        388         40 970%      3,050          0      3,050  7625%

 41500 Auditor
   300 Professional Services                     3,248                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   301 Audit                                    11,135     10,900                11,500   0%     14,000 __________     14,000   122%
                        Account:                14,383     10,900                11,500   0%     14,000          0     14,000   122%

 41550 Assessor
   304 Assessing Fees                            4,257      4,445                 4,750   0%      5,000 __________      5,000   105%
                        Account:                 4,257      4,445                 4,750   0%      5,000          0      5,000   105%

 41600 Legal Services
   302 Legal Consulting                          3,714      1,792        712      3,000  24%      2,000 __________      2,000    67%
                        Account:                 3,714      1,792        712      3,000  24%      2,000          0      2,000    67%

 41800 Planning / Zoning
   300 Professional Services                     7,451      1,240      1,000      6,000  17%      3,000 __________      3,000    50%
   302 Legal Consulting                            576      3,222                 2,000   0%      1,000 __________      1,000    50%
   303 Engineering                                 511                   401      1,000  40%        500 __________        500    50%
   310 Contractor                                6,894                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   350 Notices & Publication                       518        312        151        200  76%        200 __________        200   100%
   429 County Recording Fees                       276                   138        200  69%        200 __________        200   100%
   436 State Surcharge                             434                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                16,660      4,774      1,690      9,400  18%      4,900          0      4,900    52%

 42000 PUBLIC SAFETY
   316 Animal Control                                          69         54          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                               69         54          0 ***%          0          0          0     0%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 3 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
 42050 Building Official
   310 Contractor                                          12,859      4,486      9,500  47%      9,750 __________      9,750   103%
   436 State Surcharge                                      1,361         60        500  12%        600 __________        600   120%
                        Account:                           14,220      4,546     10,000  45%     10,350          0     10,350   104%

 42100 Police
   305 Legal Prosecution                           518         58                 1,000   0%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
                        Account:                   518         58                 1,000   0%      1,000          0      1,000   100%

 42200 Fire & Rescue
   315 Fire Dept Aid 2%                         10,349                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   700 Transfers                                29,211                           30,495   0%     31,400 __________     31,400   103%
   720 Operating Transfers                                 29,211                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                39,560     29,211                30,495   0%     31,400          0     31,400   103%

 42800 Civil Defense
   310 Contractor                                  701      2,351                 1,000   0%        500 __________        500    50%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                          85        202                   250   0%        200 __________        200    80%
   361 Liability Insurance                                                          200   0%        200 __________        200   100%
   510 Capital Expenditures                                 5,156                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                   786      7,709                 1,450   0%        900          0        900    62%

 43000 PUBLIC WORKS
   100 Wages and Salaries                       46,435     49,250     33,439     50,500  66%     51,628 __________     51,628   102%
   103 Part time wages                          21,689     23,033     15,669     26,500  59%     25,298 __________     25,298    95%
   120 Cities Share PERA                         4,861      5,482      3,560      5,600  64%      4,685 __________      4,685    84%
   121 Cities FICA 6.2%                          4,810      5,572      3,045      4,800  63%      4,770 __________      4,770    99%
   122 Cities Share MED 1.45%                    1,060      1,668        712      1,150  62%      1,115 __________      1,115    97%
   130 Health Insurance                          8,517      7,834      5,992      8,000  75%      9,000 __________      9,000   113%
   131 Life Insurance                               24         24         14         24  58%         24 __________         24   100%
   150 Workers Compensation                                 4,862                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   240 Clothing Replacement                        445         77                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   330 Training                                    313          9                   200   0%        200 __________        200   100%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                          35                               50   0%         50 __________         50   100%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                    4,348                 6,990      5,000 140%      5,000 __________      5,000   100%
   431 Permits/License                                                              150   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   450 Sales Tax                                     7                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                92,544     97,811     69,421    102,474  68%    102,270          0    102,270   100%

 43100 Highways, Streets & Roadways
   210 Operating Supplies                        1,893      4,618      1,218      3,500  35%      3,000 __________      3,000    86%
   215 Gas & Oil                                 4,808      3,083      2,964      4,000  74%      4,250 __________      4,250   106%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                  7,798     10,302        331     10,000   3%     10,000 __________     10,000   100%
   225 Street Materials                            162      1,601      1,567          0 ***%      1,500 __________      1,500 *****%
   240 Clothing Replacement                         70        278                   500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   300 Professional Services                       460        356                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   303 Engineering                               3,755         44                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   310 Contractor                                1,635      3,229                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   311 Outside Maintenance                      19,514     18,041      2,780     22,500  12%     22,500 __________     22,500   100%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 4 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
   320 Telephone                                 2,323      2,933      1,365      1,750  78%      2,280 __________      2,280   130%
   350 Notices & Publication                                                      1,000   0%        250 __________        250    25%
   361 Liability Insurance                                             1,633          0 ***%      1,000 __________      1,000 *****%
   366 Insurance Claims                                                 -462          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   381 Electric                                  1,601      1,421        964      2,000  48%      1,900 __________      1,900    95%
   382 Heating Gas                                 645        576        615        750  82%        800 __________        800   107%
   383 Garbage                                     794        836        676        750  90%      1,200 __________      1,200   160%
   401 Truck Repairs                               594      1,596      1,385      1,500  92%      1,500 __________      1,500   100%
   430 Miscellaneous                                           23        205        250  82%        250 __________        250   100%
   431 Permits/License                              35        345                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   433 Dues                                                   211                   200   0%        200 __________        200   100%
   450 Sales Tax                                    32                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   530 Improv Other than Bldg                    8,210                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                54,329     49,493     15,241     49,200  31%     51,130          0     51,130   104%

 43160 Street Lighting
   210 Operating Supplies                                      98                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   300 Professional Services                     1,018                   147          0 ***%        225 __________        225 *****%
   311 Outside Maintenance                         118        225                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   361 Liability Insurance                                             1,773      1,750 101%      1,800 __________      1,800   103%
   381 Electric                                 20,092     18,614     13,085     18,000  73%     19,000 __________     19,000   106%
                        Account:                21,228     18,937     15,005     20,250  74%     21,525          0     21,525   106%

 45200 Parks
   210 Operating Supplies                                                924          0 ***%        750 __________        750 *****%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                               651        455          0 ***%        500 __________        500 *****%
   361 Liability Insurance                                             3,943      2,700 146%      4,000 __________      4,000   148%
   435 SR Citizen Building                       7,552         45         92        750  12%        500 __________        500    67%
   450 Sales Tax                                     2                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   510 Capital Expenditures                                            6,946     10,000  69%     10,000 __________     10,000   100%
                        Account:                 7,554        696     12,360     13,450  92%     15,750          0     15,750   117%

 49240 Insurance
   150 Workers Compensation                      1,248                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                      160        829                 1,500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   361 Liability Insurance                       8,985     16,102                 9,000   0%     10,000 __________     10,000   111%
                        Account:                10,393     16,931                10,500   0%     10,000          0     10,000    95%

                         Fund:                 384,909    403,335    198,631    412,008  48%    413,720          0    413,720   100%
                                                                                                                                   %

 225 AFSA Fund

 41600 Legal Services
   302 Legal Consulting                            120                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                   120                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 5 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
 42200 Fire & Rescue
   100 Wages and Salaries                        5,760      6,875                 5,760   0%      6,000 __________      6,000   104%
   115 Drills                                   10,434     13,836                16,900   0%     17,000 __________     17,000   101%
   116 Fire Calls                                4,596      7,452                 6,500   0%      6,500 __________      6,500   100%
   117 Rescue Calls                              6,024      6,144                 9,100   0%      9,100 __________      9,100   100%
   121 Cities FICA 6.2%                          1,662      2,127                 2,372   0%      2,400 __________      2,400   101%
   122 Cities Share MED 1.45%                      389        497                   555   0%        560 __________        560   101%
   150 Workers Compensation                                 2,550     -3,158          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   210 Operating Supplies                        6,093      4,884      7,447          0 ***%      7,500 __________      7,500 *****%
   215 Gas & Oil                                 1,449      4,011        839      1,500  56%      1,500 __________      1,500   100%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                  1,856      5,222        399      8,000   5%      5,000 __________      5,000    63%
   240 Clothing Replacement                        184      3,276                 2,000   0%      2,000 __________      2,000   100%
   245 Radio/Pager Repair                          947        118         36      2,800   1%        750 __________        750    27%
   300 Professional Services                     1,010        276        182          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   301 Audit                                                3,285                 3,581   0%      3,700 __________      3,700   103%
   302 Legal Consulting                          6,539        155                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   305 Legal Prosecution                            32                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   315 Fire Dept Aid 2%                          1,938     10,620      1,000      2,000  50%      2,000 __________      2,000   100%
   320 Telephone                                   856        877        519        900  58%        925 __________        925   103%
   330 Training                                  1,460      3,000        775     11,000   7%     10,000 __________     10,000    91%
   332 State/Chief Conference                                 210                     0   0%        250 __________        250 *****%
   333 Physicals                                 1,080        815        560      1,000  56%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                          61        573         14        300   5%        500 __________        500   167%
   350 Notices & Publication                        62                   119        100 119%        100 __________        100   100%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                    2,274                 7,379      2,602 284%      3,175 __________      3,175   122%
   361 Liability Insurance                         432      3,913      3,261      4,327  75%      4,025 __________      4,025    93%
   381 Electric                                  2,228      1,775      1,525      2,100  73%      2,400 __________      2,400   114%
   382 Heating Gas                               1,374        929      1,051      2,250  47%      2,500 __________      2,500   111%
   383 Garbage                                     354        361        204        500  41%        500 __________        500   100%
   400 Repair/Maint-Contractual                  1,581                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   401 Truck Repairs                             1,121      4,141        529      2,400  22%      2,000 __________      2,000    83%
   430 Miscellaneous                                        3,225      3,056      1,000 306%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   431 Permits/License                               6                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   433 Dues                                        441        307        174        288  60%        300 __________        300   104%
   450 Sales Tax                                    27         13        126          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   550 Motor Vehicles                           13,368                           34,213   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   560 Furniture and Fixtures                    1,187                            1,093   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   580 Other Equipment                              64     10,552        243          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   700 Transfers                                 3,394      3,394                 3,500   0%      3,500 __________      3,500   100%
   720 Operating Transfers                                  1,250                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                80,283    106,663     26,280    129,141  20%     96,685          0     96,685    75%

 43225 WATER
   433 Dues                                        339                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                   339                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

 49240 Insurance
   361 Liability Insurance                       3,318                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                 3,318                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

                         Fund:                  84,060    106,663     26,280    129,141  20%     96,685          0     96,685    75%

%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 6 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 300 EDA

 46500 EDA Operations
   200 Postage                                                 96                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   210 Operating Supplies                          304        616        187      1,000  19%        800 __________        800    80%
   300 Professional Services                       100     10,198                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   302 Legal Consulting                          5,198      3,750      1,396      2,200  63%      2,000 __________      2,000    91%
   303 Engineering                                            657      3,850          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                         126         50         35        100  35%        100 __________        100   100%
   350 Notices & Publication                                  117                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   360 Workers Comp Insurance                       32                                0   0%         50 __________         50 *****%
   429 County Recording Fees                        46         34                    50   0%         50 __________         50   100%
   430 Miscellaneous                                        1,074        525      4,000  13%      2,000 __________      2,000    50%
   510 Capital Expenditures                               136,506                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   700 Transfers                                 5,000      5,000                 5,000   0%      5,000 __________      5,000   100%
                        Account:                10,806    158,098      5,993     12,350  49%     10,000          0     10,000    81%

 48100 Industrial Park
   410 Rentals                                   1,811                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                 1,811                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

 49000 MISCELLANEOUS
   430 Miscellaneous                                96                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                    96                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

                         Fund:                  12,713    158,098      5,993     12,350  49%     10,000          0     10,000    81%
                                                                                                                                   %

 315 Bonds, 2002 (GO Improvement)

 47000 DEBT SERVICE
   600 Bond Principal                                                 35,000          0 ***%     35,000 __________     35,000 *****%
   610 Bond Interest                                                   2,127          0 ***%      1,996 __________      1,996 *****%
                        Account:                                      37,127          0 ***%     36,996          0     36,996 *****%

                         Fund:                                        37,127          0 ***%     36,996          0     36,996 *****%
                                                                                                                                   %

 320 Bonds, 2003 (GO Improvement)

 47000 DEBT SERVICE
   600 Bond Principal                                                 55,000          0 ***%     60,000 __________     60,000 *****%
   610 Bond Interest                                                   3,903          0 ***%      1,350 __________      1,350 *****%
   620 Fiscal Agents Fees                                                431          0 ***%        431 __________        431 *****%
                        Account:                                      59,334          0 ***%     61,781          0     61,781 *****%

                         Fund:                                        59,334          0 ***%     61,781          0     61,781 *****%
                                                                                                                                   %



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 7 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 325 Bonds, 2005 (GO Improvement)

 47000 DEBT SERVICE
   600 Bond Principal                                                 90,000          0 ***%     95,000 __________     95,000 *****%
   610 Bond Interest                                                  38,435          0 ***%     49,035 __________     49,035 *****%
   620 Fiscal Agents Fees                                                403          0 ***%        403 __________        403 *****%
   650 Bond Issuance Costs                                            25,930          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                                     154,768          0 ***%    144,438          0    144,438 *****%

                         Fund:                                       154,768          0 ***%    144,438          0    144,438 *****%
                                                                                                                                   %

 330 Bonds, 2006 (GO Improvement)

 47000 DEBT SERVICE
   600 Bond Principal                                                120,000          0 ***%    130,000 __________    130,000 *****%
   610 Bond Interest                                                  65,760          0 ***%     44,949 __________     44,949 *****%
   620 Fiscal Agents Fees                                                450          0 ***%        450 __________        450 *****%
   680 Payment to Bond Escrow                                                         0   0%  1,125,000 __________  1,125,000 *****%
   700 Transfers                                                                      0   0%     10,359 __________     10,359 *****%
                        Account:                                     186,210          0 ***%  1,310,758          0  1,310,758 *****%

                         Fund:                                       186,210          0 ***%  1,310,758          0  1,310,758 *****%
                                                                                                                                   %

 331 Bonds, 2012 (GO Refunding)

 47000 DEBT SERVICE
   610 Bond Interest                                                                  0   0%     10,359 __________     10,359 *****%
                        Account:                                                      0 ***%     10,359          0     10,359 *****%

                         Fund:                                                        0   0%     10,359          0     10,359 *****%
                                                                                                                                   %

 601 Water

 43225 WATER
   200 Postage                                     534        733        476        800  60%        900 __________        900   113%
   210 Operating Supplies                        4,681        683      3,149      2,000 157%      2,000 __________      2,000   100%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                  1,479        646         99      1,000  10%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   300 Professional Services                       817        533        135        750  18%     10,500 __________     10,500  1400%
   302 Legal Consulting                                       194                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   303 Engineering                                                                  500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   311 Outside Maintenance                       1,064                   397      1,000  40%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
   320 Telephone                                   262        214        139        750  19%        500 __________        500    67%
   330 Training                                     80         90                   200   0%        200 __________        200   100%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                                      7                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   350 Notices & Publication                       371        286        372        500  74%        500 __________        500   100%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 8 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
   361 Liability Insurance                         914      1,033        908      1,000  91%      1,500 __________      1,500   150%
   381 Electric                                  3,909      4,054      4,113      4,500  91%      4,750 __________      4,750   106%
   382 Heating Gas                                                                  500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   430 Miscellaneous                               126                   219        200 110%        250 __________        250   125%
   431 Permits/License                           1,839      2,141      1,265      1,800  70%      2,250 __________      2,250   125%
   433 Dues                                        235        899        260        300  87%        500 __________        500   167%
   440 Chemical Purificaion                        535      3,657      2,712      2,500 108%      4,000 __________      4,000   160%
   450 Sales Tax                                 1,032      1,452      1,815      1,500 121% __________ __________          0     0%
   460 Lab Testing                               1,137        827        257        500  51%        750 __________        750   150%
   510 Capital Expenditures                                                      20,000   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   515 Well security project                                                        500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   600 Bond Principal                                                           300,000   0%     33,000 __________     33,000    11%
   610 Bond Interest                                                             20,684   0%     35,130 __________     35,130   170%
   700 Transfers                                35,000     35,000                35,000   0%     40,000 __________     40,000   114%
                        Account:                54,015     52,449     16,316    396,984   4%    140,230          0    140,230    35%

 43250 Sewage Collection and Disposal
   361 Liability Insurance                                     57                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                               57                     0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

                         Fund:                  54,015     52,506     16,316    396,984   4%    140,230          0    140,230    35%
                                                                                                                                   %

 602 Waste Water

 43000 PUBLIC WORKS
   330 Training                                    250                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   410 Rentals                                     370                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                   620                                0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

 43225 WATER
   320 Telephone                                    19                    19          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
                        Account:                    19                    19          0 ***%          0          0          0     0%

 43250 Sewage Collection and Disposal
   200 Postage                                     446        723        450        600  75%        900 __________        900   150%
   210 Operating Supplies                          307        269        652      2,500  26%      2,500 __________      2,500   100%
   215 Gas & Oil                                    51                              100   0%        100 __________        100   100%
   220 Repair & Maint. Supplies                  2,656                            2,000   0%      2,000 __________      2,000   100%
   300 Professional Services                     2,331        382        787        100 787%        250 __________        250   250%
   302 Legal Consulting                                       194                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
   303 Engineering                                 401                   214          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   310 Contractor                                8,304                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   311 Outside Maintenance                       1,370        203                 3,500   0%      3,500 __________      3,500   100%
   320 Telephone                                   243        214        120        800  15%        800 __________        800   100%
   330 Training                                                          450        200 225%        200 __________        200   100%
   335 Mileage & Reimb Exp                                      7        170        200  85%        200 __________        200   100%
   361 Liability Insurance                       4,561        328        279      5,000   6%        700 __________        700    14%
   381 Electric                                    790        694        622      2,000  31%      2,000 __________      2,000   100%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 9 of 9
14:58:33                                   Expenditure Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                  Report ID: B240B
                                                        For the Year: 2014

                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Exp. Budget      Changes   Budget     Budget
   Account  Object                 2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------
   430 Miscellaneous                               126                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   431 Permits/License                             768         23                   400   0%        400 __________        400   100%
   433 Dues                                        339        639                   100   0%        100 __________        100   100%
   440 Chemical Purificaion                        778                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   450 Sales Tax                                    10                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
   460 Lab Testing                                 485        161         81        500  16%        500 __________        500   100%
   600 Bond Principal                           20,000                           20,000   0%     20,000 __________     20,000   100%
   610 Bond Interest                             6,921                11,843     12,000  99%     15,543 __________     15,543   130%
   650 Bond Issuance Costs                                             5,593          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
   700 Transfers                                35,000     35,000                35,000   0%     40,000 __________     40,000   114%
                        Account:                85,887     38,837     21,261     85,500  25%     90,193          0     90,193   105%

                         Fund:                  86,526     38,837     21,280     85,500  25%     90,193          0     90,193   105%
                                                                                                                                   %

                  Grand Total:                 622,223    759,439    705,939   1,035,983      2,315,160          0  2,315,160



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 1 of 4
14:56:54                                     Revenue Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                    Report ID: B250B
                                                        For the Year: 2014
                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Rec. Budget      Change    Budget     Budget
         Account                   2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------  ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 101 General Fund

 30000
 31000  General Property Taxes                 189,429    209,969    121,161    230,000  53%    217,500 __________    217,500    94%
 31810  Franchise Fees                           2,976      2,877                 2,800   0%      2,800 __________      2,800   100%
 32000  LICENSES AND PERMITS                         5        450                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 32100  Liq Licenses                             8,065      8,120      8,100      8,120 100%      8,120 __________      8,120   100%
 32200  Special Events                                                   250          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 32210  Building Permits                        35,199     18,917      6,429     10,000  64%     10,000 __________     10,000   100%
 32230  Zoning Permit                              596        235        320         50 640%        250 __________        250   500%
 32231  Pet license                                 25         60         15         40  38%         25 __________         25    62%
 32300  Gambling Licenses                                      50        400         25 ***%         25 __________         25   100%
 33400  State Grants and                        42,884      6,705                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 33401  Local Government and Aids               42,474     85,152     42,679          0 ***%     71,650 __________     71,650 *****%
 33402  HACA (Homestead Credit)                  9,592        382                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 33420  Fire Dept Aid                           10,349                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 33630  Grants & Aids from Other                            2,500                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 34000  CHARGES FOR SERVICES                       170        364        251        100 251%        100 __________        100   100%
 35100  Fines                                    2,023      1,373      1,242      1,500  83%      1,500 __________      1,500   100%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                        538      1,583                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
 36200  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                  20,053        412        609      1,000  61%      1,000 __________      1,000   100%
 36210  Interest Earnings                       34,301     18,567      8,621      4,000 216%      8,000 __________      8,000   200%
 36220  Rents and Royalties                      1,846      4,929      1,535      1,500 102%      1,500 __________      1,500   100%
 36230  Contrib. &                               3,500                            2,000   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36240  Insurance Claims                         2,037        327                   500   0%        500 __________        500   100%
 36250  Insurance Dividends                                 7,445      1,874      1,750 107%      1,750 __________      1,750   100%
 39100  Transfer From AFSA                       3,394      4,644                 3,500   0%      3,500 __________      3,500   100%
 39500  Transfer from EDA                        5,000      5,000                 5,000   0%      5,000 __________      5,000   100%
 39550  Transfer from Special                   51,717                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 39700  Transfer from Water                     35,000     35,000                35,000   0%     40,000 __________     40,000   114%
 39800  Transfer From WasteWater                35,000     35,000                35,000   0%     40,000 __________     40,000   114%

                        Group:                 536,173    450,061    193,486    342,385  57%    413,720          0    413,720   120%

                        Fund:                  536,173    450,061    193,486    342,385  57%    413,720          0    413,720   120%

 225 AFSA Fund

 30000
 33400  State Grants and                                   11,620      1,000          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 33630  Grants & Aids from Other                                      13,500          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 34202  Fire Contract                           61,789     61,789     64,154     95,000  68%     95,000 __________     95,000   100%
 34203  Fire Revenues                              221      4,762      1,198        250 479%        500 __________        500   200%
 34205  Rescue Revenues                          5,229      7,060      2,612      5,250  50%      5,250 __________      5,250   100%
 36200  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                     330                 3,565     14,491  25%      5,000 __________      5,000    34%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                         2,500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36230  Contrib. &                              11,650      1,375      1,700     11,650  15%      5,000 __________      5,000    42%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 2 of 4
14:56:54                                     Revenue Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                    Report ID: B250B
                                                        For the Year: 2014
                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Rec. Budget      Change    Budget     Budget
         Account                   2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------  ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 225 AFSA Fund

 36280  Sale of Equipment                        6,000                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 39400  Transfer from General                   29,211     29,211                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 39900  MISC Income                                830        705                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                 115,260    116,522     87,729    129,141  68%    110,750          0    110,750    85%

                        Fund:                  115,260    116,522     87,729    129,141  68%    110,750          0    110,750    85%

 300 EDA

 30000
 31000  General Property Taxes                   9,229     10,020      5,286     10,000  53%     10,000 __________     10,000   100%
 33402  HACA (Homestead Credit)                    466                                0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36200  MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES                  94,460      3,500                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                           500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36220  Rents and Royalties                                                       1,850   0%      1,850 __________      1,850   100%
 36290  Sale Land/Property                                 34,992                     0   0% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                 104,155     48,512      5,286     12,350  43%     11,850          0     11,850    95%

                        Fund:                  104,155     48,512      5,286     12,350  43%     11,850          0     11,850    95%

 315 Bonds, 2002 (GO Improvement)

 30000
 31000  General Property Taxes                                                        0   0%     12,500 __________     12,500 *****%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                                            4,733          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                             0   0%        154 __________        154 *****%

                        Group:                                         4,733          0 ***%     12,654          0     12,654 *****%

                        Fund:                                          4,733          0 ***%     12,654          0     12,654 *****%

 320 Bonds, 2003 (GO Improvement)

 30000
 31000  General Property Taxes                                        26,695          0 ***%     52,000 __________     52,000 *****%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                                            5,444          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                                        32,139          0 ***%     52,000          0     52,000 *****%

                        Fund:                                         32,139          0 ***%     52,000          0     52,000 *****%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 3 of 4
14:56:54                                     Revenue Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                    Report ID: B250B
                                                        For the Year: 2014
                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Rec. Budget      Change    Budget     Budget
         Account                   2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------  ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

 325 Bonds, 2005 (GO Improvement)

 30000
 31000  General Property Taxes                                        34,352          0 ***%     98,000 __________     98,000 *****%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                                            3,793          0 ***%      8,603 __________      8,603 *****%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                603          0 ***%      4,350 __________      4,350 *****%
 36230  Contrib. &                                                    10,000          0 ***%     10,000 __________     10,000 *****%
 39310  Bond Proceeds                                                715,000          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 39320  Bond Premium                                                  22,752          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                                       786,500          0 ***%    120,953          0    120,953 *****%

                        Fund:                                        786,500          0 ***%    120,953          0    120,953 *****%

 330 Bonds, 2006 (GO Improvement)

 30000
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                             0   0%      5,603 __________      5,603 *****%

                        Group:                                                        0   0%      5,603          0      5,603 *****%

                        Fund:                                                         0   0%      5,603          0      5,603 *****%

 331 Bonds, 2012 (GO Refunding)

 30000
 39200  Transfer from other funds                                                     0   0%     10,359 __________     10,359 *****%

                        Group:                                                        0   0%     10,359          0     10,359 *****%

                        Fund:                                                         0   0%     10,359          0     10,359 *****%

 601 Water

 30000
 31300  General Sales and Use Tax                             949      1,881      1,000 188% __________ __________          0     0%
 34000  CHARGES FOR SERVICES                    68,885    151,756     80,558    120,000  67%    120,000 __________    120,000   100%
 34050  Hook-up fee                                                    1,200      2,400  50%      1,200 __________      1,200    50%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                        106      1,259        314     20,000   2%     20,000 __________     20,000   100%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                           500   0% __________ __________          0     0%
 36280  Sale of Equipment                        1,040        450        600          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 39310  Bond Proceeds                                                           300,000   0% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                  70,031    154,414     84,553    443,900  19%    141,200          0    141,200    31%



08/15/13                                                  CITY OF FREEPORT                                      Page: 4 of 4
14:56:54                                     Revenue Budget Report -- MultiYear Actuals                    Report ID: B250B
                                                        For the Year: 2014
                                                                             Current     %   Prelim.     Budget    Final      % Old
                                 ----------------  Actuals ----------------- Budget     Rec. Budget      Change    Budget     Budget
         Account                   2010       2011       2012       2013       2013    2013   14          14        14        14
-------------------------------  ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---- ---------- ---------- ---------- ------

                        Fund:                   70,031    154,414     84,553    443,900  19%    141,200          0    141,200    31%

 602 Waste Water

 30000
 34000  CHARGES FOR SERVICES                    73,740     87,730     39,606     80,000  50%     80,000 __________     80,000   100%
 34050  Hook-up fee                                                    1,200      2,400  50%      1,200 __________      1,200    50%
 36100  SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS                        106      1,259        314          0 ***% __________ __________          0     0%
 36210  Interest Earnings                                                128      1,500   9% __________ __________          0     0%

                        Group:                  73,846     88,989     41,248     83,900  49%     81,200          0     81,200    96%

                        Fund:                   73,846     88,989     41,248     83,900  49%     81,200          0     81,200    96%

                  Grand Total:                 899,465    858,498  1,235,674   1,011,676        960,289          0     960,289





CITY OF FREEPORT, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION 2013-020 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING PROPOSED 2014 BUDGET AND ORDERING CERTIFICATION 

OF PROPOSED 2014 TAX LEVY TO COUNTY AUDITOR 
 

 

It is hereby resolved by the City of Freeport, Minnesota that: 

 

WHEREAS; Minnesota State Statutes require that all local units of government formally adopt a 

preliminary tax levy for the proceeding fiscal year on or before September 13, 2013; and 

  

WHEREAS; The Freeport City Council and City staff have done preliminary analysis of the demands for 

goods, services and other debt obligations to be provided for the City in 2014 and has attached such 

proposed budget in Appendix A; and 

 

THEREFORE; The Freeport City Council has determined that the 2014 proposed tax levy shall be set at 

$390,000 and directs the City Clerk to notify the Stearns County Auditor of this proposed levy amount. 

 

   General Fund Levy   $217,500 

   EDA Levy    $  10,000 

   2012 GO Improvement Bonds Levy $  12,500 

   2013 GO Improvement Bonds Levy $  52,000 

   2005 GO Improvement Bonds Levy $  98,000 

              Total Tax Levy $390,000 

 

FURTHERMORE; The City Council hereby sets November 27, 2012 as the public hearing date for 

comment on the 2014 budget and tax levy.  The meeting will be held at 7:00 P.M. at Freeport City Hall, 

125 Main Street East in the City of Freeport. 

 

DATED THIS 27
TH

 DAY OF AUGUST, 2013 

 

Motion by: _________ 

 

Second by: __________ 

 

Council members voting in favor: _____________ 

 

Opposed or abstained: NONE 

 

__________________________________ 

Matthew Worms, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:         

__________________________________ 

                                       Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

Drafted by: Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

  City of Freeport, MN, 125 Main Street East, PO Box 301, Freeport, MN 56331 

 



Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 14, 2013 

Re:  Fire Department, Chief Position 

 

During the regular August meeting of the Freeport Fire Department, Chief Noah VanBeck announced he 

will not be seeking reappointment for the position of Chief. 

 

VanBeck has served as Chief for five years, and intends to continue to serve on the Fire Department. 

 

At this point in time no City action is needed. 

 

Chief VanBeck and I will be meeting soon to review the Fire Department Personnel Policies, especially 

regarding the Chief appointment procedure. 



Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 13, 2013 

Re:  Old Water Tower 

 

Following the July Regular City Council meeting, the Melrose Beacon published an article on their front 

page (above the fold) informing the public that a discussion regarding the fate of the old water tower may 

begin soon 

 

Since the July meeting, I have received public comments regarding the Old Water Tower: 

 

Gail Ostendorf – The Water Tower should be preserved. Contributions and donations should be used to 

help fund preservation costs. Freeport no longer has the Corner Store or the old Swany White building, 

the water tower is part of the identity of the community. 

 

Dave Homberg – People know the smile. The water tower is part of the identity of the City of Freeport. 

The water tower is along a heavily traveled roadway, many people see it. The identity means more than 

money. Preserve the water tower. 

 

Mark Middendorf – A smile should have been included on the new water tower. Where will the money 

come from to preserve the water tower. No reservations with taking it down. Should only be preserved 

with contributions and donations. According to Mark, the smile was a product of he and Jim Marthaler in 

the 1970’s. 

 

Fritz Lang – From traveling throughout Minnesota, Freeport is best known for the water tower, charlie’s, 

and the church. Surprised not every business in town says the same thing. The smiling water tower puts 

Freeport on the map. 

 

Lawrence Sand – The following letter was received: 

 

To the Mayor & Council Members, 

 

Should the water tower be saved or removed. Three things you should never change in Freeport: 

1) Charlies Café; 2) the Water Tower; and 3) the Lighted Church. This is Freeport’s identity. 

Doing volunteer in Medora for many years, I get to visit with people from all different states. 

When I mention Freeport, people will mention those three things. I have heard it many times. 

Removing the water tower would be a big step in losing our identity. It would probably cost more 

to take down than to maintain. 

 

 -Lawrence Sand 

 

 

I would appreciate direction. Should I begin planning for: 1) demolition; 2) preservation; or 3) do nothing 

for now?  



Memo 
From:  Mason Schirmer, Clerk-Treasurer 

To:  Freeport City Council 

Date:  August 13, 2013 

Re:  LBAE Training 

 

Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Training (LBAE) will be held November 13
th
 in Waite Park. The 

City’s LBAE must have a minimum of one voting member that has attend the training recently. 

 

The following are the current City Council members that have been trained: 

 

Name  Date Attended  Date Training Expires 

Matt Worms 10/28/09  11/30/13 

Men Goebel 10/28/09  11/30/13 

Carrie Goebel 11/09/11  07/01/15 

 

The following is from an email received from the Stearns County Assessor’s Office: 

 

“2013 Board of Appeal and Equalization Course Listing is provided for you in the 

attachment.  Also attached is a current listing of your township/cities attendance list.  The list 

includes when your trained members training expires.  You are encouraged to have more than one 

member trained, because if that member cannot make the meeting, for whatever reason, you will 

lose your ability to have your meetings for two years.   

   

The LBAE will be in compliance with the training requirement if: 

At least one of people named on the certification list is in attendance at your LBAE; and That 

person is a voting member.  

 

If the LBAE does not meet this requirement, or does not have a quorum present:  

The local board’s duties will be transferred to the county for the current year’s assessment.” 

 

Does anybody want to attend the upcoming training? 

 


	3A Agenda - 08-27-13
	3B Minutes of 07-30-13
	3C Claims
	4 Mid Central Variance Notice
	5A Fire Hall Door Memo
	6B Famo Feeds Default Memo
	6B Famo Feeds Notice of Default
	6B Famo Feeds Original Agreement
	6C Memo on Wellhead Protection
	6C RFP
	6C Scoping Notice
	6E A Memo for 2014 Preliminary Budget
	6E Budget, Expenditures
	6E Budget, Revenues
	6E League Memo
	6E Proposed 2014 Budget, Levy and TNT Hearing Resolution
	6F Fire Department, Chief Position
	6G Old Water Tower Memo
	6H LBAE Training Memo

